
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

A G E N D A  
 PIQUA CITY COMMISSION  
MONDAY, JUNE 16, 2008 

7:30 P.M. 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO 45356 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
ROLL CALL 

 
  

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   Approval of the minutes from June 2, 2008  
    Regular City Commission Meeting and the 
    June 9, 2008 Piqua City Work Session 

 
2. ORD. NO. 15-08   An Ordinance amending Zoning Ordinance No. 42-96 
 (3rd  Reading)    and map of the City for the rezoning of Outlot 180 
      from R-1 (One Family Residential) to OS (Open Space) 
 
3. ORD. NO. 16-(A)-08-Tabled  An Ordinance authorizing the submission of a proposed 
 (2nd  Reading)    amendment of Section 64 of the Piqua Charter to the 
      Electors 
 
4. ORD. NO. 17-08   An Ordinance amending Sections 154.005, 154.020 

(1st Reading) through 154.026, 154.121 and 154.122 of the Piqua 
Code relating to residential private garages 

 
5. ORD. NO. 18-08   An Ordinance amending Sections 154.005 and 154.108 
 (1st Reading)    of the Piqua Code relating to special events signs 
 
6. ORD. NO. 19-08   An Ordinance amending Sections 154.127 and 154.143 
 (1st Reading)    of the Piqua Code relating to demolition standards 
 
7. RES. NO. R-64-08   A Resolution fixing the time and place for a Public  
      Hearing on the proposed City Tax budget for Miami 
      County for the calendar year 2009 and Draft  

Appropriation Ordinance 
 
8. RES. NO. R-65-08   A Resolution awarding a contract for the purchase of a  
      pick-up truck for the Police Department 
 
 
 
 



 
 
9. RES. NO. R-66-08   A Resolution requesting preliminary legislation for the 

Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) to resurface 
State Route 185 from the Miami/Darke County line to  
the west corporation limit of the City of Piqua 

       
10. RES. NO. R-67-08   A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into  

a lease agreement to permit the usage of a portion of  
      Fountain Park, Hardman Field and Hance Pavilion to  

the Piqua Fourth of July Association 
 
11. RES. NO. R-68-08   A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Warren 
      Fire Equipment for the purchase of self contained 
      breathing apparatus for the Fire Department 
 
12. RES. NO. R-69-08   A Resolution approving the fiscal year 2008 formula 
      allocation program application 
 
13. RES. NO. R-70-08   A Resolution declaring and designating a blighted area 
      in the City of Piqua, Ohio 
 
14. RES. NO. R-71-08   A Resolution declaring and designating a blighted area 
      in the City of Piqua, Ohio 
 
15. RES. NO. R-72-08   A Resolution authorizing a contract addendum with  
      Bollinger Enterprises to provide Administrative Services 
      for the FY 2006 Community Housing Improvement 
      program 
 
16. RES. NO. R-73-08   A Resolution awarding a contract for Engineering  
      Design Services for the Riverside Drive Reconstruction 
      Phase I and Broadway Avenue Reconstruction- 

Phase II Projects 
    
  
ADJOURN  



 1 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
MONDAY, JUNE 2, 2008 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met in Joint Session with Washington Township Trustees at 7:30 P.M. in the 
Municipal Government Complex Commission Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street.  Mayor 
Hudson called the meeting to order.  Also present were Commissioners Martin, Vogt, Fess, and Terry.  
Absent: None. Trustees Hiegel, McMaken, and Holfinger. Absent: None. 
 

JOINT MEETING WITH WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that the minutes of the January 7, 
2008 Joint Meeting with Washington Township Trustees and Piqua City Commission be approved.  
Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Terry, Hudson, Fess, Holfinger, McMaken, and Hiegel. Nay: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
RES. NO. R-63-08 
 
A resolution declaring the intention to levy a tax in excess of the ten mill limitation and requesting the 
Auditor of Miami County Ohio certification pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 5705.03 
 
There was discussion of the mill limitation and how much it generates now and how much it will 
increase with the new levy. 
 
Trustee Hiegel stated the levy is only asking for the continuation of the ½ mill levy already in place.  
 
Trustee Holfinger stated we are going to contact the Auditors office to confirm the correct amount 
anticipated to be generated by the levy. 
 
Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple stated $211,000 is the anticipated amount that the new levy will 
generate. 
 
Scott Martin asked what benefits do the citizens of Piqua receive from this levy, and voiced his 
concerns over the levy? 
 
Trustee Hiegel stated the fees received pay for the burial plots and the opening and closing of the 
graves. Over half of the total revenue comes from the levy, said Mr. Hiegel. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated the levy pays for the operation and maintenance of the cemetery, without 
it they would have to look for other ways to generate funds. 
 
Trustee Hiegel stated Forest Hill Cemetery has been in existence since the early 1800’s, and 
explained what the levy funds would be used for.  The Riverside Cemetery in Troy is a taxpayer-
funded cemetery by the citizens of Troy.  Forest Hill Cemetery is a union cemetery between the City of 
Piqua and Washington Township, said Mr. Hiegel.  
 
Mr. Martin asked if it would be possible to make Forest Hill Cemetery a private cemetery? 
 
Commissioner Fess stated she is a member Cemetery Board and feels the immediate withdrawal of 
the levy funds would be disastrous to the cemetery. Making Forest Hill Cemetery a private cemetery   
might be something that we could look at in the future, said Mrs. Fess. 
 
 



 2 

Gary Felver, Park Avenue stated he feels that we are getting our monies worth at the cemetery, and 
believes they are doing a fine job of taking care of the cemetery. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Trustee Holfinger that the resolution be adopted. Voice 
vote, Aye: Martin, Hudson, Vogt, Terry, Fess, Hiegel, McMaken, and Holfinger. Nay: None. Motion 
carried unanimously. Mayor Hudson declared Resolution No. R-63-08 adopted. 
 
Moved by Trustee Holfinger, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to adjourn from the Joint Meeting with 
Washington Township Trustees at 7:40 P.M.   Voice vote, Aye: Holfinger, Hiegel, McMaken, Vogt, 
Terry, Fess, Martin, and Hudson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

 
Proclamation - Recognition of Pastor Thomas Farrier of the Central Baptist Church 
 
Mayor Hudson read the proclamation and presented it to Pastor Farrier. 
 
Proclamation – Recognition of the Birthday of the U.S. Army 
 
Mayor Hudson read the proclamation and presented it to Sargent Skinner of the US Army. 
 
Presentation – Renew Piqua Program Update – Mr. Andy Burner 
 
Mr. Burner gave a brief update on the Renew Piqua Program and stated the program is still in need of 
applicants and volunteers to help residents who need help with their homes. 
 
Presentation – Group Workcamp Update – Mr.. Thom Baker 
 
Jeanie Jordon-Bates presented the update for Mr. Baker who was unable to attend.  Mrs. Bates gave 
a brief update on the Group Workcamp citing there would be about 300 children and adults coming 
into Piqua to work.  The Workcamp would run from July 20 – July 25, 2008.  Mrs. Bates encouraged 
businesses to welcome the volunteers to Piqua and stated there is still a need for volunteers to help 
out in various ways.  Sherry Heath is accepting monetary donations at the Greene Street United 
Methodist Church if anyone wishes to donate, said Mrs. Bates. 
 
Residence Pride Awards – June 2008 
 
Slides were shown of each of the Residence Pride Award winners, they include: 
 

• Tim & Amanda Lacey    928 W. North Street 

• Steve & Terry Riffel   647 Park Avenue 

• Debbie F. Barbee   926 W. North Street 

• Marjorie Ervin    700 Boone Street 

• Renee & Joyce Trevino  723 Park Avenue 
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by Commissioner Fess, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that the minutes of the May 19, 
2008 Regular City Commission Meeting be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Terry, Martin, Vogt, Hudson, 
and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

ORD. NO. 9(A)-08 
(3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance repealing Schedule A of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code and adopting a new Schedule A 
of Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code, relating to wages of certain Municipal Employees 
 
Commissioner Vogt explained his previous proposal for the thirty-cent wage increase, and voiced his 
concern over the three-percent wage increase, and further stated it is admirable that the department 
heads are willing to give up their wage increase at this time. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated the raise was considered at the budget meeting in November and we 
voted for it at that time, and supports it at this time. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated it was mentioned causally at the November Budget meetings, that there 
could be a possible deficit this year. But now we are in a recession and our tax base is down, and he 
feels it may end up in a workforce reduction before it is all over. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated we will have to take a closer look at the budget for next year in the fall, and 
consider whether there should be any cost of living increases for 2009. 
 
Commissioner Fess stated she has looked at this issue very carefully. With over 209 employees in the 
city, it would not be fair to the 33 employees to not receive the increase when all of the other 
employees have already received the increase. Mrs. Fess further stated that benefits will have to be 
looked at the next budget meeting, but does not think this raise is the place to start to make cuts.  The 
City Manager and the Department Heads have declined their raise at this time and she appreciates 
what they have done. 
 
Commissioner Martin stated he does not believe the employees do not deserve the raise. But we have 
been told that we need to generate more revenue somewhere, and maybe giving a smaller 
percentage increase would be better at this time, and stated he agrees with Mr. Vogt. 
 
Commissioner Fess stated this budget deficit has not just come on this year. We received a memo in 
2002 about the budget deficit, this is not something new, said Mrs. Fess. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Fess, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 9 (A)-08 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Hudson, Fess, and Terry.  Nay, Vogt and Martin. Motion carried on a 3-2 vote.  
Mayor Hudson then declared Ordinance No. 9 (A)-08 adopted by a 3-2 vote. 
 
ORD. NO. 15-08 
(2nd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance amending Zoning Ordinance No. 42-96 and map of the City for rezoning of Outlot 180 
from R-1 (One Family Residential) to OS (Open Space) 
 
Commissioner Fess asked if the applicant was aware that farms animals are not allowed in the city? 
 
Jim Hiegel, Gordon Street, explained that there has been livestock on the land for over seventy years. 
The zoning changed in 1997 and there was livestock on the land until 2000.  
 
City Manager Enderle stated the zoning change does not have anything to do with the keeping of the 
livestock. 
 
Mr. Hiegel stated about half of the pasture is in the city and half is out.  City Manager Enderle stated 
the city would look into it and get back with Mr. Hiegel 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 15-08 be 
given a second reading.  Mayor Hudson then declared Ordinance No. 15-08 be given a second 
reading. 
 
ORD. NO. 16-08  
(1
st
 Reading) 

 
An Ordinance authorizing the submission of a proposed amendment of Section 64 of the Piqua 
Charter to the electors. 
 
Stacy Wall explained we could do three readings and still make the August deadline to the Board of 
Elections. Mr. Felver requested that we waive the three reading rule, so if the commission did not pass 
the ordinance he would have time to get out and get signatures to put it on the November ballot. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to suspend the three reading rule. 
Voice vote, Aye: Hudson, Martin, Vogt, Terry and Fess. Nay, None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to adopt Ordinance No. 16-08. 
 
No vote was taken at this time. 
 
Gary Felver, Park Avenue came forward and voiced his concern on the timeframe to have the 
amendments turned into the Board of Elections to be on the November ballot. 
 
Law Director Wall stated she had a discussion with the Director of the Board of Elections, and the 
deadline is August. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated if the City Commission passes this ordinance, it is obvious that it is their 
desire to put it on the ballot, and that is what will be done at this time. 
 
Mr. Felver voiced his concern on wording of the amendment as written, and stated he would like to 
see it written as he submitted it two weeks ago.  He would like to see Section C added to this 
legislation as he stated it, and was under the assumption that it would be changed, thus far it has not 
been changed.  
 
Mrs. Wall explained she met with Mr. Felver and they discussed Section C, and she also met with the 
Human Resources Director who serves as secretary to the Civil Service Commission.  Mrs. Wall 
stated receiving a campaign ribbon and getting injured is covered by what is in the ordinance before 
the Commission at this time, even though it is not worded exactly as you suggested.  The Civil Service 
Commission has no input into the language, it is a Charter Section, and the Civil Service Commission 
cannot amend the Charter, it can only be amended by the electorate, said Mrs. Wall.  A legal opinion 
was given to the Civil Service Commission that it was not within their authority to amend this provision. 
I believe the Civil Service Commission did not make any suggestions or alternative language changes. 
 
 It is up to this Commission on what language they would like to see put in to go before the vote to the 
electors. But the third part of this ordinance would cover anyone injured and honorably discharged, 
said Mrs. Wall.   
 
Commissioner Fess stated she is confused on what the Civil Service Commission is requesting and 
asked for an explanation.  City Manager Enderle stated this is not a Civil Service request. 
 
Mr. Felver explained this is the way the Civil Service Commission requested it to be presented by him 
to the Commission. 
 
City Manager Enderle explained how the information was presented. There was no action taken by the 
Civil Service Commission for this legislation. 
 
 



 5 

 
There was continued discussion of the language to be presented by both commissioners and Mr. 
Felver. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she is still a little confused on what they would like to see. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated he would like to look at the language, and bring it back at the next 
commission meeting for approval. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Fess seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 16-08 be tabled 
until the June 16, 2008 meeting.  
 
Monthly Reports were accepted. 
 
Commissioner Vogt voiced concern over grass laying in the gutters after mowing, and asked citizens 
to keep the gutters clear as not to clog the sewers.  Mr. Vogt explained the finances of the Car Show 
held last year, stating they made around $1200 not $200 that was reported previously.  Mr. Vogt 
asked when making complaints if citizens would please give their names so he can respond to their 
complaints. 
 
Commissioner Fess congratulated the Piqua High School graduates, and wished the retiring and 
incoming teachers the best of luck. The Piqua boy’s track team is on their way to the state to compete 
and Mrs. Fess wished them the best of luck. Mrs. Fess urged citizens to sign up for the Renew Piqua 
Program. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated the Residence Pride winners stating they are all from the 4

th
 ward 

this time and she is very proud of them. 
 
Mr. Enderle stated the City Commission would hold a work session on June 9, 2008.  The meeting will 
begin with a tour of the hotel at 4:00 p.m. and conclude with a study session at 4:45 in the 
Commission Chamber with an update on the hotel project. 
 
Mayor Hudson voiced concern over residents filling swimming pools from fire hydrants. 
 
City Manager Enderle explained the reason for discontinuing the use of fire hydrants to fill swimming 
pools.  Public Works Director Tom Zechman stated he has written a draft of a potential program 
request, and passed a copy out to the Commissioners to look over.  City Manager Enderle went over 
the reasons for discontinuing the use of the fire hydrants to fill swimming pools and for watering lawns.  
City Manager Enderle stated he recommends the City not fill swimming pools from the fire hydrants at 
this time.  Citizens are urged to contact the Commissioner ‘s to voice their concerns or opinions by 
calling or emailing them. 
 
Commissioner Vogt asked if it would be possible for the city to provide at a small cost, an in line meter 
that could be attached between the faucet and their hose to check the water that goes into the pool, 
this way they could avoid having to pay sewage on the water.  City Manager Enderle stated that it 
something they could look into. 
 
Mayor Hudson stated he has had several calls regarding the bridges in the cemetery.  City Manager 
Enderle stated the city owns the in trust for the cemetery, and the bridges have been inspected 
recently and are structurally sound, but they may not look as nice as we would like them to. 
 
Mayor Hudson thanked Jim Roth for doing a great job at Forest Hill Cemetery in the year that he has 
been in the position as superintendent.  The cemetery has a new sense of energy, and the best days 
are ahead of us at the cemetery, said Mayor Hudson. 
 
 
 
 



 6 

Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Piqua City 
Commission Meeting at 8:45 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Hudson, Vogt, Terry, and Martin. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
 
      _____________________________ 
      THOMAS D. HUDSON, MAYOR 
 

PASSED: _______________________ 
 

ATTEST: _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL 
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

JUNE 9, 2008 

5:00 P.M. 

201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 

Piqua City Commission met in Special Work Session at 4:00 P.M. beginning with a tour of the Hotel before convening 
in the Municipal Government Complex City Commission Chambers, 201 W. Water Street at 5:00 P.M. for the work 
session.  Mayor Hudson called the meeting to order at 5:00 P.M.  Also present were Commissioners Martin, Terry, and 
Fess. Absent:  Vogt.  Also in attendance: City Manager Fred Enderle, Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple, Assistant 
City Manager/Economic Development Director Harry Bumgarner, Public Works Director Tom Zechman, Construction 
Project Manager Bob Graeser, Ruth Koon, Jim Brown, Doug Haines, Jim Oda Dan French, and several citizens. 
 
The Commission members met at 4:00 P.M. at the Hotel and were given a walking tour of the Hotel Project by Public 
Works Director Tom Zechman, and Construction Project Manager Bob Graeser.  
 
Piqua City Commission convened at 5:00 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission Chambers to hear 
a presentation on the Hotel Project. 
 
City Manager Enderle explained there are a few important items that need to be addressed at this time and they include: 
 
Construction, leasing options, and the layout of the 4th floor 
Preview of the Grand Opening 
Financial Status 
 
Tom Zechman gave a brief construction update.  We are in the home stretch with completion scheduled for September 
1, 2008, not including the coffee shop and the restaurant, said Mr. Zechman. 
 
City Manager Enderle passed out a handout with a sketch of the 4th floor rooms, and explained the cost schedule for 
each room. There will be six different breakout rooms as well as an audio visual area, and banquet facilities with 
seating for around three hundred fifty people. 
 
Mainstreet Executive Director Lorna Swisher is keeping a log of dates for November and December for rental of the 
ballroom and etc.  She has forty-one dates reserved so far for the ballroom, said Mr. Zechman. 
 
The first floor will have two tenant spaces one a coffee shop and the other will be a restaurant.  Contracts have not been 
signed with either one at this time and they may not be completed by the October opening. 
 
The scheduled completion date is September 1, 2008 for the Library to take possession of the keys. The grand opening 
is scheduled for October 19, 2008 and tours will be offered the week of October 20-25, 2008. 
  
City Manager Enderle passed out a final projected revenue and expense sheet for the Hotel Project.  Mr. Enderele went 
over revenue and expenses line by line, and explained each item in detail. 
 
Mayor Hudson asked if the original estimate is going to be the final cost?  Mr. Enderle stated the final construction cost 
would be $20,277, 133 and explained. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Mayor Hudson thanked everyone for attending. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Fess, to adjourn from the Piqua City Commission Work 
Session at 6:00 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Hudson, Terry,  Fess, and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



      ______________________________ 
                   THOMAS D. HUDSON, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
                 REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
    

















ORDINANCE NO. 16(A) - 08 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT OF SECTION 64 OF THE PIQUA CHARTER TO THE ELECTORS 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 135 of the Piqua Charter, amendments to the 

Charter may be submitted to the electorate of the City by a two-thirds vote of this 
Commission; and  

 
WHEREAS, this Commission deems it proper to provide the electors with an 

opportunity to vote on a proposed amendment of Section 64 of the Charter. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the Piqua City Commission, a 

majority of its members concurring that: 
 

SECTION 1.  The proposed amendment of Section 64 of the Charter of the City of 
Piqua, Ohio shall be as follows: 
 

Section 64.  Department of Civil Service 
 
The department of civil service shall be under the management and 
control of the Civil Service Commission who shall have the powers 
applying to Civil Service under the general law, except that promotions in 
the police and fire departments shall be by competitive examinations, 
among the persons in the next lowest position.  Said examinations shall 
be drafted in accordance with the rules and regulations adopted by the 
Piqua Civil Service Commission and shall be for the purpose of assessing 
the candidate’s capacity to perform the duties and responsibilities of the 
position sought. Said examinations may include scores on a written 
examination, efficiency ratings, psychological testing, seniority ratings and 
oral examinations.  Each of the aforementioned criteria shall be given 
such weight as the Civil Service Commission shall establish by its rules, 
except that an applicant for entry level examination only who has served 
as a cadet or on active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States for a 
continuous period of eighteen (18) months or more and has been 
honorably discharged from the Armed Forces twelve (12) months or more, 
and/or an accumulative period of eighteen(18) months or more, and/or 
received a campaign medal ribbon for service in a specified combat 
Theater of Operation and discharged under honorable conditions and/or 
currently serving in the Armed Forces shall receive ten percent (10%) of 
the passing test score in addition to that the applicant’s passing written 
test score.  In the event there are less than two candidates in the next 
lowest position, then persons in the position immediately below that shall 
become eligible to take the examination.  The city manager shall be the 
appointing authority on behalf of the Civil Service Commission. 

 
SECTION 2.  The proposed amendment shall be submitted to a vote of the electors 
on November 4, 2008, in the general election in the City of Piqua. 
 



SECTION 3.  The ballot for said election shall, at the top thereof, be entitled “City of 
Piqua Charter Amendment Section 64”, and the question to be submitted shall be as 
follows: 
 

Shall the Ordinance amending Charter Section 64 to require that those 
who serve a continuous period of twelve (12) months or more, and/or an 
accumulative period of eighteen (18) months or more, and/or received a 
campaign medal ribbon for service in a specified combat Theater of 
Operation and discharged under honorable conditions and/or currently 
serving in the Armed Forces receive ten percent (10%) in addition to the 
applicant’s passing written test score be approved? 

 
To the left of said wording, in boxes with appropriate places for the marking, shall 
appear the words, “For the Ordinance” and “Against the Ordinance” for each elector 
to indicate his vote in the manner and place provided. 
 
SECTION 4.  The City Manager shall cause notice of the proposed amendment as 
well as the time and place of the election to be published in the Piqua Daily Call for a 
period of two consecutive weeks. 
 
SECTION 5.  The Clerk of this Commission shall certify a copy of this Ordinance to 
the Board of Elections of Miami County, Ohio. 
 
SECTION 6.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
     

 
              
              
         THOMAS D. HUDSON, MAYOR 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 
























































































































































































































































































